



608352

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate

.
.
.
.
.
.

House

The Appropriations Committee on Agriculture, Environment, and General Government (Brodeur) recommended the following:

Senate Amendment

Delete lines 574 - 1603

and insert:

The department, in coordination with the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, the St. Johns River Water Management District, South Florida Water Management District, local governments, the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program, and other stakeholders, shall identify and prioritize strategies and projects necessary to achieve water quality



608352

standards within the Indian River Lagoon watershed and meet the total maximum daily loads. Projects identified from this evaluation must be incorporated into the Banana River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, Central Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, North Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, and Mosquito Lagoon Reasonable Assurance Plan, as appropriate.

(c) Indian River Lagoon Watershed Research and Water Quality Monitoring Program.—The department, in coordination with the St. Johns River Water Management District, the South Florida Water Management District, and the Indian River Lagoon National Estuary Program, shall implement the Indian River Lagoon Watershed Research and Water Quality Monitoring Program to establish a comprehensive water quality monitoring network throughout the Indian River Lagoon and fund research pertaining to water quality, ecosystem restoration, and seagrass impacts and restoration. The department shall, in coordination with the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, use the results from the program to prioritize projects and to make modifications to the Banana River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, Central Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, North Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, and Mosquito Lagoon Reasonable Assurance Plan, as appropriate.

(d) Onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems.—
1. Beginning on January 1, 2024, unless previously permitted, the installation of new onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems is prohibited within the Banana River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, Central Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, North Indian River Lagoon Basin



608352

Management Action Plan, and Mosquito Lagoon Reasonable Assurance Plan areas where a publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage system is available as defined in s. 381.0065(2)(a). Where central sewerage is not available, only enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems or other wastewater treatment systems that achieve at least 50 percent nutrient reduction compared to a standard onsite sewage treatment and disposal system are authorized.

2. By July 1, 2030, any commercial or residential property with an existing onsite sewage treatment and disposal system located within the Banana River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, Central Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, North Indian River Lagoon Basin Management Action Plan, and Mosquito Lagoon Reasonable Assurance Plan areas must connect to central sewer if available or upgrade to an enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal system or other wastewater treatment system that achieves at least 50 percent nutrient reduction compared to a standard onsite sewage treatment and disposal system.

(4) RELATIONSHIP TO STATE WATER QUALITY STANDARDS.—This section may not be construed to modify any existing state water quality standard or to modify s. 403.067(6) and (7)(a).

(5) PRESERVATION OF AUTHORITY.—This section may not be construed to restrict the authority otherwise granted to agencies pursuant to this chapter and chapter 403, and this section is supplemental to the authority granted to agencies pursuant to this chapter and chapter 403.

(6) RULES.—The department and governing boards of the St. Johns River Water Management District and South Florida Water



608352

Management District may adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement this section.

Section 5. Subsection (1) of section 373.501, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

373.501 Appropriation of funds to water management districts.—

(1) The department shall transfer ~~may allocate~~ to the water management districts, ~~from~~ funds appropriated to the districts through the department in, such sums as ~~may be~~ deemed necessary to defray the costs of the administrative, regulatory, and other operational activities of the districts. The governing boards shall submit annual budget requests for such purposes to the department, and the department shall consider such budgets in preparing its budget request for the Legislature. The districts shall annually report to the department on the use of the funds.

Section 6. Present subsections (2) through (8) of section 373.802, Florida Statutes, are redesignated as subsections (3) through (9), respectively, and a new subsection (2) is added to that section, to read:

373.802 Definitions.—As used in this part, the term:

(2) "Enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal system" means an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system approved by the department as capable of meeting or exceeding a 50 percent total nitrogen reduction before disposal of wastewater in the drainfield, or at least 65 percent total nitrogen reduction combined from onsite sewage tank or tanks and drainfield.

Section 7. Subsections (2) and (3) of section 373.807, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:



608352

373.807 Protection of water quality in Outstanding Florida Springs.—By July 1, 2016, the department shall initiate assessment, pursuant to s. 403.067(3), of Outstanding Florida Springs or spring systems for which an impairment determination has not been made under the numeric nutrient standards in effect for spring vents. Assessments must be completed by July 1, 2018.

(2) By July 1, 2017, each local government, as defined in s. 373.802(3) ~~s. 373.802(2)~~, that has not adopted an ordinance pursuant to s. 403.9337, shall develop, enact, and implement an ordinance pursuant to that section. It is the intent of the Legislature that ordinances required to be adopted under this subsection reflect the latest scientific information, advancements, and technological improvements in the industry.

(3) As part of a basin management action plan that includes an Outstanding Florida Spring, the department, relevant local governments, and relevant local public and private wastewater utilities shall develop an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plan for a spring if the department determines onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems within a basin management action plan ~~priority focus area~~ contribute at least 20 percent of nonpoint source nitrogen pollution or if the department determines remediation is necessary to achieve the total maximum daily load. The plan must ~~shall~~ identify cost-effective and financially feasible projects necessary to reduce the nutrient impacts from onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems and shall be completed and adopted as part of the basin management action plan no later than the first 5-year milestone required by subparagraph (1)(b)8. The department is the lead agency in coordinating the preparation of and the adoption of



608352

the plan. The department shall:

(a) Collect and evaluate credible scientific information on the effect of nutrients, particularly forms of nitrogen, on springs and springs systems; and

(b) Develop a public education plan to provide area residents with reliable, understandable information about onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems and springs.

In addition to the requirements in s. 403.067, the plan must ~~shall~~ include options for repair, upgrade, replacement, drainfield modification, addition of effective nitrogen reducing features, connection to a central sewerage system, or other action for an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system or group of systems within a basin management action plan ~~priority focus area~~ that contribute at least 20 percent of nonpoint source nitrogen pollution or if the department determines remediation is necessary to achieve a total maximum daily load. For these systems, the department shall include in the plan a priority ranking for each system or group of systems that requires remediation and shall award funds to implement the remediation projects contingent on an appropriation in the General Appropriations Act, which may include all or part of the costs necessary for repair, upgrade, replacement, drainfield modification, addition of effective nitrogen reducing features, initial connection to a central sewerage system, or other action. In awarding funds, the department may consider expected nutrient reduction benefit per unit cost, size and scope of project, relative local financial contribution to the project, and the financial impact on property owners and the community.



608352

The department may waive matching funding requirements for proposed projects within an area designated as a rural area of opportunity under s. 288.0656.

Section 8. Section 373.811, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

373.811 Prohibited activities within a basin management action plan ~~priority focus area~~.—The following activities are prohibited within a basin management action plan ~~priority focus area~~ in effect for an Outstanding Florida Spring:

(1) New domestic wastewater disposal facilities, including rapid infiltration basins, with permitted capacities of 100,000 gallons per day or more, except for those facilities that meet an advanced wastewater treatment standard of no more than 3 mg/l total nitrogen, expressed as N, on an annual permitted basis, or a more stringent treatment standard if the department determines the more stringent standard is necessary to attain a total maximum daily load for the Outstanding Florida Spring.

(2) New onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems where connection to a publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage system is available as defined in s. 381.0065(2) (a). On lots of 1 acre or less, if a publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage system is not available, only the installation of enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems or other wastewater treatment systems that achieve at least 50 percent nutrient reduction compared to a standard onsite sewage treatment and disposal system are authorized ~~on lots of less than 1 acre, if the addition of the specific systems conflicts with an onsite treatment and disposal system remediation plan incorporated into a basin management action plan in accordance~~



608352

with ~~s. 373.807(3)~~.

(3) New facilities for the disposal of hazardous waste.

(4) The land application of Class A or Class B domestic wastewater biosolids not in accordance with a department approved nutrient management plan establishing the rate at which all biosolids, soil amendments, and sources of nutrients at the land application site can be applied to the land for crop production while minimizing the amount of pollutants and nutrients discharged to groundwater or waters of the state.

(5) New agriculture operations that do not implement best management practices, measures necessary to achieve pollution reduction levels established by the department, or groundwater monitoring plans approved by a water management district or the department.

Section 9. Present paragraphs (f) through (r) of subsection (2) of section 381.0065, Florida Statutes, are redesignated as paragraphs (g) through (s), respectively, a new paragraph (f) is added to that subsection, and paragraph (n) of subsection (4) of that section is amended, to read:

381.0065 Onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems; regulation.—

(2) DEFINITIONS.—As used in ss. 381.0065–381.0067, the term:

(f) "Enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal system" means an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system approved by the department as capable of meeting or exceeding a 50 percent total nitrogen reduction before disposal of wastewater in the drainfield, or at least 65 percent total nitrogen reduction combined from onsite sewage tank or tanks and



608352

drainfield.

(4) PERMITS; INSTALLATION; CONDITIONS.—A person may not construct, repair, modify, abandon, or operate an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system without first obtaining a permit approved by the department. The department may issue permits to carry out this section, except that the issuance of a permit for work seaward of the coastal construction control line established under s. 161.053 shall be contingent upon receipt of any required coastal construction control line permit from the department. A construction permit is valid for 18 months after the date of issuance and may be extended by the department for one 90-day period under rules adopted by the department. A repair permit is valid for 90 days after the date of issuance. An operating permit must be obtained before the use of any aerobic treatment unit or if the establishment generates commercial waste. Buildings or establishments that use an aerobic treatment unit or generate commercial waste shall be inspected by the department at least annually to assure compliance with the terms of the operating permit. The operating permit for a commercial wastewater system is valid for 1 year after the date of issuance and must be renewed annually. The operating permit for an aerobic treatment unit is valid for 2 years after the date of issuance and must be renewed every 2 years. If all information pertaining to the siting, location, and installation conditions or repair of an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remains the same, a construction or repair permit for the onsite sewage treatment and disposal system may be transferred to another person, if the transferee files, within 60 days after the transfer of ownership, an



608352

amended application providing all corrected information and proof of ownership of the property. A fee is not associated with the processing of this supplemental information. A person may not contract to construct, modify, alter, repair, service, abandon, or maintain any portion of an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system without being registered under part III of chapter 489. A property owner who personally performs construction, maintenance, or repairs to a system serving his or her own owner-occupied single-family residence is exempt from registration requirements for performing such construction, maintenance, or repairs on that residence, but is subject to all permitting requirements. A municipality or political subdivision of the state may not issue a building or plumbing permit for any building that requires the use of an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system unless the owner or builder has received a construction permit for such system from the department. A building or structure may not be occupied and a municipality, political subdivision, or any state or federal agency may not authorize occupancy until the department approves the final installation of the onsite sewage treatment and disposal system. A municipality or political subdivision of the state may not approve any change in occupancy or tenancy of a building that uses an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system until the department has reviewed the use of the system with the proposed change, approved the change, and amended the operating permit.

(n) Evaluations for determining the seasonal high-water table elevations or the suitability of soils for the use of a new onsite sewage treatment and disposal system shall be performed by department personnel, professional engineers



608352

registered in the state, or such other persons with expertise, as defined by rule, in making such evaluations. Evaluations for determining mean annual flood lines shall be performed by those persons identified in paragraph (2) (1) ~~(2) (k)~~. The department shall accept evaluations submitted by professional engineers and such other persons as meet the expertise established by this section or by rule unless the department has a reasonable scientific basis for questioning the accuracy or completeness of the evaluation.

Section 10. Subsection (3) is added to section 381.00655, Florida Statutes, to read:

381.00655 Connection of existing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to central sewerage system; requirements.—

(3) Local governmental agencies, as defined in s. 403.1835(2), that receive grants or loans from the department to offset the cost of connecting onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage systems are encouraged to do all of the following while such funds remain available:

(a) Identify the owners of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems within the jurisdiction of the respective local governmental agency who are eligible to apply for the grant or loan funds and notify such owners of the funding availability.

(b) Maintain a publicly available website with information relating to the availability of the grant or loan funds, including the amount of funds available and information on how the owner of an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system may apply for such funds.

Section 11. Section 403.031, Florida Statutes, is reordered



608352

and amended to read:

403.031 Definitions.—In construing this chapter, or rules and regulations adopted pursuant hereto, the following words, phrases, or terms, unless the context otherwise indicates, have the following meanings:

(1) "Contaminant" is any substance which is harmful to plant, animal, or human life.

(2) "Department" means the Department of Environmental Protection.

(3) "Effluent limitations" means any restriction established by the department on quantities, rates, or concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, or other constituents which are discharged from sources into waters of the state.

(5) "Enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal system" means an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system approved by the department as capable of meeting or exceeding a 50 percent total nitrogen reduction before disposal of wastewater in the drainfield, or at least 65 percent total nitrogen reduction combined from onsite sewage tank or tanks and drainfield.

(6)~~(4)~~ "Installation" means ~~is~~ any structure, equipment, or facility, or appurtenances thereto, or operation which may emit air or water contaminants in quantities prohibited by rules of the department.

(7) "Nutrient or nutrient-related standards" means water quality standards and criteria established for total nitrogen and total phosphorous, or their organic or inorganic forms; biological variables, such as chlorophyll-a, biomass, or the



608352

structure of the phytoplankton, periphyton, or vascular plant community, that respond to nutrient load or concentration in a predictable and measurable manner; or dissolved oxygen if it is demonstrated for the waterbody that dissolved oxygen conditions result in a biological imbalance and the dissolved oxygen responds to a nutrient load or concentration in a predictable and measurable manner.

(8) "Onsite sewage treatment and disposal system" means a system that contains a standard subsurface, filled, or mound drainfield system; an aerobic treatment unit; a graywater system tank; a laundry wastewater system tank; a septic tank; a grease interceptor; a pump tank; a solids or effluent pump; a waterless, incinerating, or organic waste-composting toilet; or a sanitary pit privy that is installed or proposed to be installed beyond the building sewer on land of the owner or on other land to which the owner has the legal right to install a system. The term includes any item placed within, or intended to be used as a part of or in conjunction with, the system. The term does not include package sewage treatment facilities and other treatment works regulated under chapter 403.

(9)-(5) "Person" means the state or any agency or institution thereof, the United States or any agency or institution thereof, or any municipality, political subdivision, public or private corporation, individual, partnership, association, or other entity and includes any officer or governing or managing body of the state, the United States, any agency, any municipality, political subdivision, or public or private corporation.

(10)-(6) "Plant" is any unit operation, complex, area, or



608352

multiple of unit operations that produce, process, or cause to be processed any materials, the processing of which can, or may, cause air or water pollution.

(11)~~(7)~~ "Pollution" is the presence in the outdoor atmosphere or waters of the state of any substances, contaminants, noise, or manmade or human-induced impairment of air or waters or alteration of the chemical, physical, biological, or radiological integrity of air or water in quantities or at levels which are or may be potentially harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property or which unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property, including outdoor recreation unless authorized by applicable law.

(12)~~(8)~~ "Pollution prevention" means the steps taken by a potential generator of contamination or pollution to eliminate or reduce the contamination or pollution before it is discharged into the environment. The term includes nonmandatory steps taken to use alternative forms of energy, conserve or reduce the use of energy, substitute nontoxic materials for toxic materials, conserve or reduce the use of toxic materials and raw materials, reformulate products, modify manufacturing or other processes, improve in-plant maintenance and operations, implement environmental planning before expanding a facility, and recycle toxic or other raw materials.

(14)~~(9)~~ "Sewerage system" means pipelines or conduits, pumping stations, and force mains and all other structures, devices, appurtenances, and facilities used for collecting or conducting wastes to an ultimate point for treatment or disposal.



608352

(15)~~(10)~~ "Source" means ~~is~~ any and all points of origin of
a contaminant ~~the item defined in subsection (1)~~, whether
privately or publicly owned or operated.

(21)~~(11)~~ "Treatment works" and "disposal systems" mean any
plant or other works used for the purpose of treating,
stabilizing, or holding wastes.

(22)~~(12)~~ "Wastes" means sewage, industrial wastes, and all
other liquid, gaseous, solid, radioactive, or other substances
which may pollute or tend to pollute any waters of the state.

(23)~~(13)~~ "Waters" include, but are not limited to, rivers,
lakes, streams, springs, impoundments, wetlands, and all other
waters or bodies of water, including fresh, brackish, saline,
tidal, surface, or underground waters. Waters owned entirely by
one person other than the state are included only in regard to
possible discharge on other property or water. Underground
waters include, but are not limited to, all underground waters
passing through pores of rock or soils or flowing through in
channels, whether manmade or natural. Solely for purposes of s.
403.0885, waters of the state also include navigable waters or
waters of the contiguous zone as used in s. 502 of the Clean
Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. ss. 1251 et seq., as in
existence on January 1, 1993, except for those navigable waters
seaward of the boundaries of the state set forth in s. 1, Art.
II of the State Constitution. Solely for purposes of this
chapter, waters of the state also include the area bounded by
the following:

(a) Commence at the intersection of State Road (SRD) 5
(U.S. 1) and the county line dividing Miami-Dade and Monroe
Counties, said point also being the mean high-water line of



608352

Florida Bay, located in section 4, township 60 south, range 39 east of the Tallahassee Meridian for the point of beginning. From said point of beginning, thence run northwesterly along said SRD 5 to an intersection with the north line of section 18, township 58 south, range 39 east; thence run westerly to a point marking the southeast corner of section 12, township 58 south, range 37 east, said point also lying on the east boundary of the Everglades National Park; thence run north along the east boundary of the aforementioned Everglades National Park to a point marking the northeast corner of section 1, township 58 south, range 37 east; thence run west along said park to a point marking the northwest corner of said section 1; thence run northerly along said park to a point marking the northwest corner of section 24, township 57 south, range 37 east; thence run westerly along the south lines of sections 14, 15, and 16 to the southwest corner of section 16; thence leaving the Everglades National Park boundary run northerly along the west line of section 16 to the northwest corner of section 16; thence east along the northerly line of section 16 to a point at the intersection of the east one-half and west one-half of section 9; thence northerly along the line separating the east one-half and the west one-half of sections 9, 4, 33, and 28; thence run easterly along the north line of section 28 to the northeast corner of section 28; thence run northerly along the west line of section 22 to the northwest corner of section 22; thence easterly along the north line of section 22 to a point at the intersection of the east one-half and west one-half of section 15; thence run northerly along said line to the point of intersection with the north line of section 15; thence easterly



608352

446 along the north line of section 15 to the northeast corner of
447 section 15; thence run northerly along the west lines of
448 sections 11 and 2 to the northwest corner of section 2; thence
449 run easterly along the north lines of sections 2 and 1 to the
450 northeast corner of section 1, township 56 south, range 37 east;
451 thence run north along the east line of section 36, township 55
452 south, range 37 east to the northeast corner of section 36;
453 thence run west along the north line of section 36 to the
454 northwest corner of section 36; thence run north along the west
455 line of section 25 to the northwest corner of section 25; thence
456 run west along the north line of section 26 to the northwest
457 corner of section 26; thence run north along the west line of
458 section 23 to the northwest corner of section 23; thence run
459 easterly along the north line of section 23 to the northeast
460 corner of section 23; thence run north along the west line of
461 section 13 to the northwest corner of section 13; thence run
462 east along the north line of section 13 to a point of
463 intersection with the west line of the southeast one-quarter of
464 section 12; thence run north along the west line of the
465 southeast one-quarter of section 12 to the northwest corner of
466 the southeast one-quarter of section 12; thence run east along
467 the north line of the southeast one-quarter of section 12 to the
468 point of intersection with the east line of section 12; thence
469 run east along the south line of the northwest one-quarter of
470 section 7 to the southeast corner of the northwest one-quarter
471 of section 7; thence run north along the east line of the
472 northwest one-quarter of section 7 to the point of intersection
473 with the north line of section 7; thence run northerly along the
474 west line of the southeast one-quarter of section 6 to the



608352

northwest corner of the southeast one-quarter of section 6;
thence run east along the north lines of the southeast one-
quarter of section 6 and the southwest one-quarter of section 5
to the northeast corner of the southwest one-quarter of section
5; thence run northerly along the east line of the northwest
one-quarter of section 5 to the point of intersection with the
north line of section 5; thence run northerly along the line
dividing the east one-half and the west one-half of Lot 5 to a
point intersecting the north line of Lot 5; thence run east
along the north line of Lot 5 to the northeast corner of Lot 5,
township 54 1/2 south, range 38 east; thence run north along the
west line of section 33, township 54 south, range 38 east to a
point intersecting the northwest corner of the southwest one-
quarter of section 33; thence run easterly along the north line
of the southwest one-quarter of section 33 to the northeast
corner of the southwest one-quarter of section 33; thence run
north along the west line of the northeast one-quarter of
section 33 to a point intersecting the north line of section 33;
thence run easterly along the north line of section 33 to the
northeast corner of section 33; thence run northerly along the
west line of section 27 to a point intersecting the northwest
corner of the southwest one-quarter of section 27; thence run
easterly to the northeast corner of the southwest one-quarter of
section 27; thence run northerly along the west line of the
northeast one-quarter of section 27 to a point intersecting the
north line of section 27; thence run west along the north line
of section 27 to the northwest corner of section 27; thence run
north along the west lines of sections 22 and 15 to the
northwest corner of section 15; thence run easterly along the



608352

north lines of sections 15 and 14 to the point of intersection with the L-31N Levee, said intersection located near the southeast corner of section 11, township 54 south, range 38 east; thence run northerly along Levee L-31N crossing SRD 90 (U.S. 41 Tamiami Trail) to an intersection common to Levees L-31N, L-29, and L-30, said intersection located near the southeast corner of section 2, township 54 south, range 38 east; thence run northeasterly, northerly, and northeasterly along Levee L-30 to a point of intersection with the Miami-Dade/Broward Levee, said intersection located near the northeast corner of section 17, township 52 south, range 39 east; thence run due east to a point of intersection with SRD 27 (Krome Ave.); thence run northeasterly along SRD 27 to an intersection with SRD 25 (U.S. 27), said intersection located in section 3, township 52 south, range 39 east; thence run northerly along said SRD 25, entering into Broward County, to an intersection with SRD 84 at Andytown; thence run southeasterly along the aforementioned SRD 84 to an intersection with the southwesterly prolongation of Levee L-35A, said intersection being located in the northeast one-quarter of section 5, township 50 south, range 40 east; thence run northeasterly along Levee L-35A to an intersection of Levee L-36, said intersection located near the southeast corner of section 12, township 49 south, range 40 east; thence run northerly along Levee L-36, entering into Palm Beach County, to an intersection common to said Levees L-36, L-39, and L-40, said intersection located near the west quarter corner of section 19, township 47 south, range 41 east; thence run northeasterly, easterly, and northerly along Levee L-40, said Levee L-40 being the easterly boundary of the Loxahatchee



608352

National Wildlife Refuge, to an intersection with SRD 80 (U.S. 441), said intersection located near the southeast corner of section 32, township 43 south, range 40 east; thence run westerly along the aforementioned SRD 80 to a point marking the intersection of said road and the northeasterly prolongation of Levee L-7, said Levee L-7 being the westerly boundary of the Loxahatchee National Wildlife Refuge; thence run southwesterly and southerly along said Levee L-7 to an intersection common to Levees L-7, L-15 (Hillsborough Canal), and L-6; thence run southwesterly along Levee L-6 to an intersection common to Levee L-6, SRD 25 (U.S. 27), and Levee L-5, said intersection being located near the northwest corner of section 27, township 47 south, range 38 east; thence run westerly along the aforementioned Levee L-5 to a point intersecting the east line of range 36 east; thence run northerly along said range line to a point marking the northeast corner of section 1, township 47 south, range 36 east; thence run westerly along the north line of township 47 south, to an intersection with Levee L-23/24 (Miami Canal); thence run northwesterly along the Miami Canal Levee to a point intersecting the north line of section 22, township 46 south, range 35 east; thence run westerly to a point marking the northwest corner of section 21, township 46 south, range 35 east; thence run southerly to the southwest corner of said section 21; thence run westerly to a point marking the northwest corner of section 30, township 46 south, range 35 east, said point also being on the line dividing Palm Beach and Hendry Counties; from said point, thence run southerly along said county line to a point marking the intersection of Broward, Hendry, and Collier Counties, said point also being the



608352

northeast corner of section 1, township 49 south, range 34 east;
thence run westerly along the line dividing Hendry and Collier
Counties and continuing along the prolongation thereof to a
point marking the southwest corner of section 36, township 48
south, range 29 east; thence run southerly to a point marking
the southwest corner of section 12, township 49 south, range 29
east; thence run westerly to a point marking the southwest
corner of section 10, township 49 south, range 29 east; thence
run southerly to a point marking the southwest corner of section
15, township 49 south, range 29 east; thence run westerly to a
point marking the northwest corner of section 24, township 49
south, range 28 east, said point lying on the west boundary of
the Big Cypress Area of Critical State Concern as described in
rule 28-25.001, Florida Administrative Code; thence run
southerly along said boundary crossing SRD 84 (Alligator Alley)
to a point marking the southwest corner of section 24, township
50 south, range 28 east; thence leaving the aforementioned west
boundary of the Big Cypress Area of Critical State Concern run
easterly to a point marking the northeast corner of section 25,
township 50 south, range 28 east; thence run southerly along the
east line of range 28 east to a point lying approximately 0.15
miles south of the northeast corner of section 1, township 52
south, range 28 east; thence run southwesterly 2.4 miles more or
less to an intersection with SRD 90 (U.S. 41 Tamiami Trail),
said intersection lying 1.1 miles more or less west of the east
line of range 28 east; thence run northwesterly and westerly
along SRD 90 to an intersection with the west line of section
10, township 52 south, range 28 east; thence leaving SRD 90 run
southerly to a point marking the southwest corner of section 15,



608352

township 52 south, range 28 east; thence run westerly crossing the Faka Union Canal 0.6 miles more or less to a point; thence run southerly and parallel to the Faka Union Canal to a point located on the mean high-water line of Faka Union Bay; thence run southeasterly along the mean high-water line of the various bays, rivers, inlets, and streams to the point of beginning.

(b) The area bounded by the line described in paragraph (a) generally includes those waters to be known as waters of the state. The landward extent of these waters shall be determined by the delineation methodology ratified in s. 373.4211. Any waters which are outside the general boundary line described in paragraph (a) but which are contiguous thereto by virtue of the presence of a wetland, watercourse, or other surface water, as determined by the delineation methodology ratified in s. 373.4211, shall be a part of this waterbody ~~water body~~. Any areas within the line described in paragraph (a) which are neither a wetland nor surface water, as determined by the delineation methodology ratified in s. 373.4211, shall be excluded therefrom. If the Florida Environmental Regulation Commission designates the waters within the boundaries an Outstanding Florida Water, waters outside the boundaries may ~~shall~~ not be included as part of such designation unless a hearing is held pursuant to notice in each appropriate county and the boundaries of such lands are specifically considered and described for such designation.

~~(16)-(14)~~ "State water resource implementation rule" means the rule authorized by s. 373.036, which sets forth goals, objectives, and guidance for the development and review of programs, rules, and plans relating to water resources, based on



608352

statutory policies and directives. The waters of the state are among its most basic resources. Such waters should be managed to conserve and protect water resources and to realize the full beneficial use of these resources.

~~(17)(15)~~ "Stormwater management program" means the institutional strategy for stormwater management, including urban, agricultural, and other stormwater.

~~(18)(16)~~ "Stormwater management system" means a system ~~which is~~ designed and constructed or implemented to control discharges that ~~which~~ are necessitated by rainfall events, incorporating methods to collect, convey, store, absorb, inhibit, treat, use, or reuse water to prevent or reduce flooding, overdrainage, environmental degradation and water pollution or otherwise affect the quantity and quality of discharges from the system.

~~(19)(17)~~ "Stormwater utility" means the funding of a stormwater management program by assessing the cost of the program to the beneficiaries based on their relative contribution to its need. It is operated as a typical utility which bills services regularly, similar to water and wastewater services.

~~(24)(18)~~ "Watershed" means the land area that ~~which~~ contributes to the flow of water into a receiving body of water.

~~(13)(19)~~ "Regulated air pollutant" means any pollutant regulated under the federal Clean Air Act.

~~(4)(20)~~ "Electrical power plant" means, for purposes of this part of this chapter, any electrical generating facility that uses any process or fuel and that is owned or operated by an electric utility, as defined in s. 403.503(14), and includes



608352

any associated facility that directly supports the operation of the electrical power plant.

~~(20)~~⁽²¹⁾ "Total maximum daily load" is defined as the sum of the individual wasteload allocations for point sources and the load allocations for nonpoint sources and natural background. Prior to determining individual wasteload allocations and load allocations, the maximum amount of a pollutant that a waterbody ~~water body~~ or water segment can assimilate from all sources without exceeding water quality standards must first be calculated.

Section 12. Paragraphs (a) and (e) of subsection (7) of section 403.067, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

403.067 Establishment and implementation of total maximum daily loads.—

(7) DEVELOPMENT OF BASIN MANAGEMENT PLANS AND IMPLEMENTATION OF TOTAL MAXIMUM DAILY LOADS.—

(a) *Basin management action plans.*—

1. In developing and implementing the total maximum daily load for a waterbody ~~water body~~, the department, or the department in conjunction with a water management district, may develop a basin management action plan that addresses some or all of the watersheds and basins tributary to the waterbody ~~water body~~. Such plan must integrate the appropriate management strategies available to the state through existing water quality protection programs to achieve the total maximum daily loads and may provide for phased implementation of these management strategies to promote timely, cost-effective actions as provided for in s. 403.151. The plan must establish a schedule implementing the management strategies, establish a basis for



608352

evaluating the plan's effectiveness, and identify feasible funding strategies for implementing the plan's management strategies. The management strategies may include regional treatment systems or other public works, when appropriate, and voluntary trading of water quality credits to achieve the needed pollutant load reductions.

2. A basin management action plan must equitably allocate, pursuant to paragraph (6) (b), pollutant reductions to individual basins, as a whole to all basins, or to each identified point source or category of nonpoint sources, as appropriate. For nonpoint sources for which best management practices have been adopted, the initial requirement specified by the plan must be those practices developed pursuant to paragraph (c). When appropriate, the plan may take into account the benefits of pollutant load reduction achieved by point or nonpoint sources that have implemented management strategies to reduce pollutant loads, including best management practices, before the development of the basin management action plan. The plan must also identify the mechanisms that will address potential future increases in pollutant loading.

3. The basin management action planning process is intended to involve the broadest possible range of interested parties, with the objective of encouraging the greatest amount of cooperation and consensus possible. In developing a basin management action plan, the department shall assure that key stakeholders, including, but not limited to, applicable local governments, water management districts, the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, other appropriate state agencies, local soil and water conservation districts,



608352

environmental groups, regulated interests, and affected pollution sources, are invited to participate in the process. The department shall hold at least one public meeting in the vicinity of the watershed or basin to discuss and receive comments during the planning process and shall otherwise encourage public participation to the greatest practicable extent. Notice of the public meeting must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in each county in which the watershed or basin lies at least 5 days, but not more than 15 days, before the public meeting. A basin management action plan does not supplant or otherwise alter any assessment made under subsection (3) or subsection (4) or any calculation or initial allocation.

4. Each new or revised basin management action plan must ~~shall~~ include all of the following:

a. The appropriate management strategies available through existing water quality protection programs to achieve total maximum daily loads, which may provide for phased implementation to promote timely, cost-effective actions as provided for in s. 403.151.~~+~~

b. A description of best management practices adopted by rule.~~+~~

c. For the applicable 5-year implementation milestone, a list of projects that will achieve the pollutant load reductions needed to meet the total maximum daily load or the load allocations established pursuant to subsection (6). Each project must include a planning-level cost estimate and an estimated date of completion. ~~A list of projects in priority ranking with a planning-level cost estimate and estimated date of completion~~



608352

~~for each listed project;~~

d. A list of projects developed pursuant to paragraph (e),
if applicable.

~~e.d.~~ The source and amount of financial assistance to be
made available by the department, a water management district,
or other entity for each listed project, if applicable. ~~;~~ and

~~f.e.~~ A planning-level estimate of each listed project's
expected load reduction, if applicable.

5. The department shall adopt all or any part of a basin
management action plan and any amendment to such plan by
secretarial order pursuant to chapter 120 to implement this
section.

6. The basin management action plan must include 5-year
milestones for implementation and water quality improvement, and
an associated water quality monitoring component sufficient to
evaluate whether reasonable progress in pollutant load
reductions is being achieved over time. An assessment of
progress toward these milestones shall be conducted every 5
years, and revisions to the plan shall be made as appropriate.
Any entity with a specific pollutant load reduction requirement
established in a basin management action plan shall identify the
projects or strategies that such entity will undertake to meet
current 5-year pollution reduction milestones, beginning with
the first 5-year milestone for new basin management action
plans, and submit such projects to the department for inclusion
in the appropriate basin management action plan. Each project
identified must include an estimated amount of nutrient
reduction that is reasonably expected to be achieved based on
the best scientific information available. Revisions to the



608352

basin management action plan shall be made by the department in cooperation with basin stakeholders. Revisions to the management strategies required for nonpoint sources must follow the procedures in subparagraph (c)4. Revised basin management action plans must be adopted pursuant to subparagraph 5.

7. In accordance with procedures adopted by rule under paragraph (9)(c), basin management action plans, and other pollution control programs under local, state, or federal authority as provided in subsection (4), may allow point or nonpoint sources that will achieve greater pollutant reductions than required by an adopted total maximum daily load or wasteload allocation to generate, register, and trade water quality credits for the excess reductions to enable other sources to achieve their allocation; however, the generation of water quality credits does not remove the obligation of a source or activity to meet applicable technology requirements or adopted best management practices. Such plans must allow trading between NPDES permittees, and trading that may or may not involve NPDES permittees, where the generation or use of the credits involve an entity or activity not subject to department water discharge permits whose owner voluntarily elects to obtain department authorization for the generation and sale of credits.

8. The department's rule relating to the equitable abatement of pollutants into surface waters do not apply to water bodies or waterbody ~~water body~~ segments for which a basin management plan that takes into account future new or expanded activities or discharges has been adopted under this section.

9. In order to promote resilient wastewater utilities, if the department identifies domestic wastewater treatment



608352

facilities or onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems as contributors of at least 20 percent of point source or nonpoint source nutrient pollution or if the department determines remediation is necessary to achieve the total maximum daily load, a basin management action plan for a nutrient total maximum daily load must include the following:

a. A wastewater treatment plan developed by each local government, in cooperation with the department, the water management district, and the public and private domestic wastewater treatment facilities within the jurisdiction of the local government, that addresses domestic wastewater. The wastewater treatment plan must:

(I) Provide for construction, expansion, or upgrades necessary to achieve the total maximum daily load requirements applicable to the domestic wastewater treatment facility.

(II) Include the permitted capacity in average annual gallons per day for the domestic wastewater treatment facility; the average nutrient concentration and the estimated average nutrient load of the domestic wastewater; a projected timeline of the dates by which the construction of any facility improvements will begin and be completed and the date by which operations of the improved facility will begin; the estimated cost of the improvements; and the identity of responsible parties.

The wastewater treatment plan must be adopted as part of the basin management action plan no later than July 1, 2025. A local government that does not have a domestic wastewater treatment facility in its jurisdiction is not required to develop a



608352

wastewater treatment plan unless there is a demonstrated need to establish a domestic wastewater treatment facility within its jurisdiction to improve water quality necessary to achieve a total maximum daily load. A local government is not responsible for a private domestic wastewater facility's compliance with a basin management action plan unless such facility is operated through a public-private partnership to which the local government is a party.

b. An onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plan developed by each local government in cooperation with the department, the Department of Health, water management districts, and public and private domestic wastewater treatment facilities.

(I) The onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plan must identify cost-effective and financially feasible projects necessary to achieve the nutrient load reductions required for onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems. To identify cost-effective and financially feasible projects for remediation of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems, the local government shall:

(A) Include an inventory of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems based on the best information available;

(B) Identify onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems that would be eliminated through connection to existing or future central domestic wastewater infrastructure in the jurisdiction or domestic wastewater service area of the local government, that would be replaced with or upgraded to enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems, or that would remain on conventional onsite sewage treatment and



608352

disposal systems;

(C) Estimate the costs of potential onsite sewage treatment and disposal system connections, upgrades, or replacements; and

(D) Identify deadlines and interim milestones for the planning, design, and construction of projects.

(II) The department shall adopt the onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plan as part of the basin management action plan no later than July 1, 2025, or as required for Outstanding Florida Springs under s. 373.807.

10. The installation of new onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems constructed within a basin management action plan area adopted under this section, a reasonable assurance plan, or a pollution reduction plan is prohibited where connection to a publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage system is available as defined in s. 381.0065(2)(a). On lots of 1 acre or less within a basin management action plan adopted under this section, a reasonable assurance plan, or a pollution reduction plan where a publicly owned or investor-owned sewerage system is not available, the installation of enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems or other wastewater treatment systems that achieve at least 50 percent nutrient reduction compared to a standard onsite sewage treatment and disposal system is required.

~~11.10.~~ When identifying wastewater projects in a basin management action plan, the department may not require the higher cost option if it achieves the same nutrient load reduction as a lower cost option. A regulated entity may choose a different cost option if it complies with the pollutant reduction requirements of an adopted total maximum daily load



608352

and meets or exceeds the pollution reduction requirement of the original project.

12. Annually, local governments subject to a basin management action plan or located within the basin of a waterbody not attaining nutrient or nutrient-related standards must provide to the department an update on the status of construction of sanitary sewers to serve such areas, in a manner prescribed by the department.

(e) Cooperative agricultural regional water quality improvement element.—

1. The department ~~and~~^{and} the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, in cooperation with ~~and~~ owners of agricultural operations in the basin, shall develop a cooperative agricultural regional water quality improvement element as part of a basin management action plan where ~~only if:~~

~~a. Agricultural measures have been adopted by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services pursuant to subparagraph (c)2. and have been implemented and the water body remains impaired;~~

~~b.~~ Agricultural nonpoint sources contribute to at least 20 percent of nonpoint source nutrient discharges; and

~~b.e.~~ The department determines that additional measures, in combination with state-sponsored regional projects and other management strategies included in the basin management action plan, are necessary to achieve the total maximum daily load.

2. The element will be implemented through the use of cost-effective and technically and financially practical cooperative regional agricultural nutrient reduction ~~cost-sharing~~ projects ~~and. The element must include a list of such projects submitted~~



608352

to the department by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services which, in combination with the best management practices, additional measures, and other management strategies, will achieve the needed pollutant load reductions established for agricultural nonpoint sources ~~cost-effective and technically and financially practical cooperative regional agricultural nutrient reduction projects that can be implemented on private properties on a site-specific, cooperative basis.~~ Such cooperative regional agricultural nutrient reduction projects may include, but are not limited to, land acquisition in fee or conservation easements on the lands of willing sellers and site-specific water quality improvement or dispersed water management projects. The list of regional projects included in the cooperative agricultural regional water quality improvement element must include a planning-level cost estimate of each project along with the estimated amount of nutrient reduction that such project will achieve ~~on the lands of project participants.~~

3. To qualify for participation in the cooperative agricultural regional water quality improvement element, the participant must have already implemented and be in compliance with best management practices or other measures adopted by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services pursuant to subparagraph (c)2. The element must ~~may~~ be included in the basin management action plan as a part of the next 5-year assessment under subparagraph (a)6.

4. The department or the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services may submit a legislative budget request to fund projects developed pursuant to this paragraph. In



608352

allocating funds for projects funded pursuant to this paragraph, the department shall provide at least 20 percent of its annual appropriation for projects in subbasins with the highest nutrient concentrations within a basin management action plan. Projects submitted pursuant to this paragraph are eligible for funding in accordance with s. 403.0673.

Section 13. Section 403.0673, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

403.0673 Water quality improvement ~~Wastewater~~ grant program.—A ~~wastewater~~ grant program is established within the Department of Environmental Protection to address wastewater, stormwater, and agricultural sources of nutrient loading to surface water or groundwater.

(1) The purpose of the grant program is to fund projects that will improve the quality of waters that:

(a) Are not attaining nutrient or nutrient-related standards;

(b) Have an established total maximum daily load; or

(c) Are located ~~Subject to the appropriation of funds by the Legislature, the department may provide grants for the following projects~~ within a basin management action plan area, a reasonable assurance plan area an alternative restoration plan adopted by final order, an accepted alternative restoration plan area, or a rural area of opportunity under s. 288.0656.

(2) The department may provide grants for all of the following types of projects that reduce the amount of nutrients entering those waters identified in subsection (1):

(a) Connecting onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to central sewer facilities.



608352

(b) Upgrading domestic wastewater treatment facilities to advanced waste treatment or greater.

(c) Repairing, upgrading, expanding, or constructing stormwater treatment facilities that result in improvements to surface water or groundwater quality.

(d) Repairing, upgrading, expanding, or constructing domestic wastewater treatment facilities that result in improvements to surface water or groundwater quality, including domestic wastewater reuse and collection systems.

(e) Projects identified pursuant to s. 403.067(7)(a) or (7)(e).

(f) Projects identified in a wastewater treatment plan or an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system remediation plan developed pursuant to s. 403.067(7)(a)9.a. and b.

(g) Projects listed in a city or county capital improvement element pursuant to s. 163.3177(3)(a)4.b.

(h) Retrofitting onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to upgrade such systems to enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems where central sewerage is unavailable ~~which will individually or collectively reduce excess nutrient pollution:~~

~~(a) Projects to retrofit onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to upgrade such systems to enhanced nutrient-reducing onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems.~~

~~(b) Projects to construct, upgrade, or expand facilities to provide advanced waste treatment, as defined in s. 403.086(4).~~

~~(c) Projects to connect onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to central sewer facilities.~~

~~(3)(2) In allocating such funds, priority must be given to~~



608352

~~projects that subsidize the connection of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to wastewater treatment facilities. First priority must be given to subsidize the connection of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to existing infrastructure. Second priority must be given to any expansion of a collection or transmission system that promotes efficiency by planning the installation of wastewater transmission facilities to be constructed concurrently with other construction projects occurring within or along a transportation facility right-of-way. Third priority must be given to all other connections of onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems to wastewater treatment facilities. The~~
department shall consider and prioritize those projects that:

(a) Have the maximum estimated reduction in nutrient load per project;

(b) Demonstrate project readiness;

(c) Are cost-effective;

(d) Have a cost share identified by the applicant, except for rural areas of opportunity;

(e) Have previous state commitment and involvement in the project, considering previously funded phases, the total amount of previous state funding, and previous partial appropriations for the proposed project; or

(f) Are in a the cost-effectiveness of the project; the overall environmental benefit of a project; the location where reductions are needed most to attain the water quality standards of a waterbody not attaining nutrient or nutrient-related standards.



608352

Any project that does not result in reducing nutrient loading to a waterbody identified in subsection (1) is not eligible for funding under this section ~~of a project; the availability of local matching funds; and projected water savings or quantity improvements associated with a project.~~

~~(3) Each grant for a project described in subsection (1) must require a minimum of a 50 percent local match of funds. However, the department may, at its discretion, waive, in whole or in part, this consideration of the local contribution for proposed projects within an area designated as a rural area of opportunity under s. 288.0656.~~

(4) The department shall coordinate annually with each water management district, ~~as necessary,~~ to identify potential projects ~~grant recipients~~ in each district.

(5) The department shall coordinate with the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, local governments, and stakeholders to identify the most effective and beneficial water quality improvement projects.

(6) Beginning January 1, 2024 ~~2021~~, and each January 1 thereafter, the department shall submit a report regarding the projects funded pursuant to this section to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. The report must include a list of those projects receiving funding and the following information for each project:

- (a) A description of the project;
- (b) The cost of the project;
- (c) The estimated nutrient load reduction of the project;
- (d) The location of the project;



608352

1055 (e) The waterbody or waterbodies where the project will
1056 reduce nutrients; and
1057 (f) The total cost share being provided for the project.